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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  

COUNTY OF PEARL RIVER 

CITY OF PICAYUNE 

 
 
 Be It Remembered that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Picayune, Pearl 
River County, Mississippi, met at City Hall, 815 North Beech Street, in said City, 
Tuesday, February 16, 2010, at 5:00 p.m. in regular session with the following officials 
present: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Larry Watkins, Lynn Bumpers, Todd Lane, 
Larry Breland and Wayne Gouguet, City Clerk Priscilla Daniel and City Manager Harvey 
Miller. 
 

 It Being Determined a quorum was present, the following proceedings were held. 
 

Opening prayer was given by Cecil Watkins, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
led by Mayor Ed Pinero. 

 
ORDER TO APPROVE MINUTES 

 
 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to approve the Minutes for the City of Picayune meeting dated February 2, 
2010. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHLY PRIVILEGE LICENSE 

REPORT 

 
 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Privilege License Report for the month of 
January 2010. 
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 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None 
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 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF MONTHY PUBLIC RECORDS 

REQUEST REPORT 
 
 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to acknowledge receipt of monthly Public Records Requests Report for the 
month of January 2010. 

CITY OF PICAYUNE 

REPORT OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 

JANUARY 2010 

DATE PERSON REQUESTING SUBJECT MATTER 

DATE  

FILLED/ 

DENIED ACTION 
12/16/09 SUSAN BLAKENEY COPY OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

10/6/09 & 10/20/09 
12/17/09 APPROVED 

11/25/09 JOHN CHAMBERS NEW BUSINESS LISTING 6/09 TO 
11/09 

11/25/09 APPROVED 

11/25/09 LARRY R WILLIAMSON, 
REFLECTECH 

COPY OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - N/A 

01/20/10 FRANK N EGGER COPY OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
7/7/09 

01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2482 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-1337 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-1444 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2000 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-11-0447 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1744 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-10-0220 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 WMS, WMS & MONTGOMERY ACCIDENT REPORT 2008-01-2912 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 THE READY LAW FIRM ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-09-1507 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 DEPT OF EDUCATION MS 
SCHOOLS FOR THE BLIND & 
DEAF 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0566 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 WMS, WMS & MONTGOMERY ACCIDENT REPORT 2008-03-3675 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2683 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 LEXIS NEXIS ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0206 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 MORRIS BART, LTD ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1778 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 PAUL ZULLI ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0556 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 SAFEWAY INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2437 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1831 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1927 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1402 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 SILBERT, GARON, & PITRE ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-04-0774 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/06/10 MILTON DUCOTE ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2683 01/06/10 APPROVED 

12/28/09 PROGRESSIVE INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1927 12/28/09 APPROVED 

01/04/10 RAY PRADILLO ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1819 01/04/10 APPROVED 

12/28/09 SANDREL TURNER ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0367 12/28/09 APPROVED 

12/28/09 STATE FARM INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1242 12/28/09 APPROVED 

12/28/09 METROPOLITAN REPORTING 
BUREAU 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1191 12/28/09 APPROVED 

12/28/09 MICHAEL HINGLE & ASSOCIATES, 
LLC 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0465 12/28/09 APPROVED 

12/28/09 FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1778 12/28/09 APPROVED 

12/22/09 SAFEWAY INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0847 12/22/09 APPROVED 

12/22/09 FARM BUREAU ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0777 12/22/09 APPROVED 

01/27/10 DENISE HUNTER INCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-1444 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
RICHARD A TOWNSEND 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/27/10 APPROVED 

01/27/10 MARY E THORNTON BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 PICAYUNE APARTMENTS FOR 
LUSHAWNDA NEWMAN 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 
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01/26/10 NURSING MANAGEMENT, INC 
FOR RADINE SMITH 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 CITY OF HOUSTON FOR JAIME 
VARVAS 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 PICAYUNE APARTMENTS FOR 
TAJUANA L SMITH 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 CHRIS RUSHING INCIDENT REPORT 2010-010-2336 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 MATILDE WILLIAMS ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-2336 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 NURSING MANAGEMENT INC, 
FOR JOYCE WALTON 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/26/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR K 
FAIRLEY, R JORDAN, J PLUMMER 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/26/10 APPROVED 

01/25/10 ALMA VENTURA ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-07-2018 01/25/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 PICAYUNE APARTMENTS FOR 
MAGGIE R NIXON 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
RICHARD H LADNER, SR. 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 EUNICE A BURTON BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 EDWARD H LITTLE BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 JOHN R PITTMAN BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 PATRICIA CARTER INCIDENT REPORT 2009-11-1411 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
JOHSUA J JONES 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 YOUTH COURT FOR S JORDAN, B 
GRAHAM 

INCIDENT REPORT 2009-11-
0104,2008-01-1278,2006-05-2830 

01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/20/10 JEFFERY J TRITT BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/20/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 MS DEPT OF CORRECTIONS FOR 
ROBERT E SMITH, GLENN D 
SMITH 

INCIDENT 2009-03-2748.2009-08-
2778,2009-10-0421 

01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
JAMES BUCHERT 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
LAVERN D KENDRICK 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 HENSLEY R LEE CONTRACTING, 
INC 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0952 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
HILLARY A WILD 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 CAMERON M WAGNER BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 LARRY COX INCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-1034 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/19/10 PROGRESSIVE INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2482 01/19/10 APPROVED 

01/14/10 JOSEPH EDWARDS ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2471 01/14/10 APPROVED 

01/14/10 22ND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FOR MICHELLE CLEMENS 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/14/10 APPROVED 

01/14/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
WANITA WILLIAMS 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/14/10 APPROVED 

01/14/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
HERMAN A HICKS 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/14/10 APPROVED 

01/14/10 MARY WHEAT ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0412 01/14/10 APPROVED 

01/13/10 ADAM LANIER INCIDENT REPORT 2007-02-2492 01/13/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 PRC SHERIFF'S DEPT FOR 
JASON C LEE 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/13/10 DANIEL J GASCHO BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/13/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 PRC SHERIFF'S DEPT FOR J 
KNEZEVICH, C FORNAE 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 BRIDGET R MCCORMICK BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
JAMES BRYAN 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 U.S. PROBATION OFFICE FOR 
SHANE W TANNER 

BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/12/10 SAMANTHA BUSBY INCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2324 01/12/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 SGT. GENE KEITH ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2360 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 CAPT. THERESA MILAR ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1402 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 PAUL ZULLI ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0556 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 CHRISTOPHER SIMONEAUX INCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0622 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 MICKEY MOSELEY INCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2008 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/11/10 TERRY CROSSWHITE FOR 
KATHLEEN CROSSWHITE 

INCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0952 01/11/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 COREY A  HINMAN BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 PATRICIA A NIXON BACKGROUND CHECKS 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/07/10 KEVIN E MEDEROS ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2008 01/07/10 APPROVED 

01/06/10 HENRY L VARNADO ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-09-0647 01/06/10 APPROVED 

01/06/10 STEFFANI GRAHAM ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-1778 01/06/10 APPROVED 

01/06/10 DARYL SMITH ACCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0345 01/06/10 APPROVED 

01/05/10 RANDALL W BURKETT ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-11-0261 01/05/10 APPROVED 

01/04/10 THOMAS WILSON INCIDENT REPORT 2010-01-0206 01/04/10 APPROVED 

01/04/10 METROPOLITAN REPORTING 
BUREAU 

ACCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-2358 01/04/10 APPROVED 

01/04/10 GORDON CAMPBELL INCIDENT REPORT 2009-12-0391 01/04/10 APPROVED 
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01/04/10 RAY PRADILLO ACCIDENT 2009-12-1819 01/04/10 APPROVED 

01/04/10 EFRAN MORALES ACCIDENT 2009-12-2358 01/04/10 APPROVED 

 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
APPROVE REQUEST FROM PEARL RIVER BLUE MASKERS FOR “CAN SHAKE” 

 
 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Lane, to approve request from Pearl River Blue Maskers Booster Club to hold a “can 
shakes” on February 20, 2010 from 10am 2pm at the intersection of Hwy 11 & Hwy 43 
and at East Canal & Hwy 11 to raise funds to attend the National Drama Competition in 
Lexington, KY. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
ADOPT RESOLUTION HONORING THE BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Breland to adopt resolution honoring the Boy Scouts of America and the Pine Burr Area 
Council on the 100th Anniversary of Scouting. 
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 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
ACCEPT THE CORRECTED AUDIT FOR THE CITY OF PICAYUNE FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2007-2008 
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 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to accept the corrected Audit for the City of Picayune for the fiscal year 2007-
2008. 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
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American Institute of Certified Public Accountants • Mississippi Society of 
Certified Public Accountants  
 
#10 Plaza Drive • P.O. Box 16433 • Hattiesburg, MS 39404-6433  
 
Phone 601.268.3135 • Fax 601.261.3922  
 
www.wrightcpagroup.com  
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
 
February 1, 2010  
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the  
City Council, and City Manager  
City of Picayune  
Picayune, Mississippi  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the  
business -type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City  
of Picayune, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, 
which collectively  
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. These financial  
statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of Picayune, 
Mississippi. Our  
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United  
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government  
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards  
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the  
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis,  
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating  
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis  
for our opinions.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the  
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business -type 
activities, each major  
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Picayune, 
Mississippi, as of  
September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash  
flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted  
in the Unites States of America.  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our 
report dated February  
1, 2010, on our consideration of the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s internal 
control over financial  
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts,  
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our  
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
result of that testing, and  
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That  
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards  
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.  
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The budgetary comparison information listed as Schedules 1 and 2 is not a 
required part of the  
basic financial statements but is considered supplementary information 
required by accounting  
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have 
applied certain limited  
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding 
the methods of  
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we 
did not audit the  
information an express no opinion on it.  
 
The City of Picayune, Mississippi, has not presented Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis,  
which is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is 
supplementary information  
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that  
collectively comprise the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s basic financial 
statements. The  
accompanying financial information and statements listed as Schedule A in the 
table of contents  
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required as 
part of the basic financial  
statements of the City of Picayune, Mississippi. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of  
federal awards (Schedule I) is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by U.S.  
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and  
Nonprofit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. The  
information in these schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of  
basic financial stateme nts and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to  
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
 
WRIGHT CPA GROUP, PLLC  
Certified Public Accountants  
Hattiesburg, Mississippi  
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EXHIBIT A  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MS  
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS  
September 30, 2008  
 
 
Governmental Business-type  
Assets Activities Activities Total  
Cash and cash equivalent 2,723,981$ 1,081,992$ $ 3,805,973  
Petty cash 1,250 250 1,500  
Intergovernmental receivables 1,821,967 1,821,967  
Accounts receivable 1,129,443 1,129,443  
Fines receivable, net 714,866 714,866  
Property tax levy 2,009,433 2,009,433  
Inventories 480,434 587,293 1,067,727  
Internal balances 1,482,282 (1,482,282) - 
Notes receivable 1,145,535 1,145,535  
Lease receivable 24,880 24,880  
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Other assets 26,596 15,157 41,753  
Land and construction in progress 3,229,153 172,599 3,401,752  
Other capital assets, net 19,478,110 3,599,649 23,077,759  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,140,067 632,002 3,772,069  
Deferred charges 149,136 42,010 191,146  
Total assets 36,427,690 5,778,113 42,205,803  
Liabilities  
Accounts payable 322,853 430,829 753,682  
Intergovernmental payables 436,853 436,853  
Accrued interest expense 235,584 59,734 295,318  
Deferred revenue 2,009,433 38,473 2,047,906  
Bonds payable, current 378,280 26,720 405,000  
Notes payable, current 176,685 39,013 215,698  
Lease payable, current 19,521 19,521  
Bonds payable 6,268,742 391,982 6,660,724  
Notes payable 3,733,883 1,432,027 5,165,910  
Compensated absences 383,417 62,078 445,495  
Assets held for others 433,440 433,440  
Note payable to PRCUA 17,616 17,616  
Sewer payments due to PRCUA 472,835 472,835  
Total Liabilities 13,945,730 3,424,268 17,369,998  
Net Assets  
Invested in capital assets, (net of  
related debt) 14,473,764 2,431,403 16,905,167  
Restricted 3,140,067 632,002 3,772,069  
Unrestricted 4,868,129 (709,560) 4,158,569  
Total Net Assets 22,481,960$ 2,353,845$ $ 24,835,805  
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT B  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets  
 
Governmental activities:  
General government  
Public Safety  
Public works  
Culture and recreation  
Economic development  
Conservation of resources  
Health and welfare  
Interest on long-term debt  
Appropriations  
Total Governmental activities  
Functions/Programs Expenses  
Fees, fines, and  
Charges for  
Services  
2,437,455$ 914,393  
5,690,065 461,312  
2,724,945 137,175  
267,401  
535,375 131,392  
346,796  
38,200  
12,040,237 1,644,272  
Operating  
Grants and  
Contributions  
123,443  
302,052  
22,924  
448,419  
Capital Grants  
and  
Contributions  
347,547  
758,162  
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1,152,614  
2,258,323  
Governmental  
Activities  
(1,399,619)  
(4,579,154)  
(1,829,608)  
(267,401)  
748,631  
22,924  
(346,796)  
(38,200)  
(7,689,223)  
Business-type  
Activities Total  
(1,399,619)  
(4,579,154)  
(1,829,608)  
(267,401)  
748,631  
- 
22,924  
(346,796)  
(38,200)  
(7,689,223)  
Business-type activities:  
Utility  
Cemetery  
Total business-type activities  
5,107,484  
121,791  
5,229,275  
5,357,474  
72,901  
5,430,375  
985,149  
985,149  
1,235,139  
(48,890)  
1,186,249  
1,235,139  
(48,890)  
1,186,249  
Total 17,269,512$ 7,074,647 448,419 3,243,472 (7,689,223) 1,186,249 
(6,502,974)  
General revenues:  
Taxes  
Property taxes, levied for general purposes  
Sales tax  
Road and bridge tax  
Interest earnings  
Sale of assets  
Other  
Transfer-in  
Transfer-out  
1,693,255  
5,199,871  
141,281  
415,735  
324,441  
833,333  
(225,000)  
54,965  
(3,682,817)  
225,000  
(833,333)  
1,693,255  
5,199,871  
141,281  
470,700  
(3,682,817)  
324,441  
1,058,333  
(1,058,333)  
Total general revenues, support to other organizations, and transfers 
8,382,916 (4,236,185) 4,146,731  
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Changes in Net Assets 693,693 (3,049,936) (2,356,243)  
Net Assets - Beginning  
Prior Period Adjustment  
Net Assets - Beginning as restated  
22,046,628  
(258,361)  
21,788,267  
5,184,658  
219,123  
5,403,781  
27,231,286  
(39,238)  
27,192,048  
Net Assets - Ending 22,481,960$ 2,353,845 24,835,805  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT C  
 
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
BALANCE SHEET  
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
ASSETS  
Cash and cash equivalents  
Petty cash  
Intergovernmental receivables  
Lease receivable  
Fines receivable  
Due from other funds  
Inventory  
Prepaid expenses  
Accrued interest  
Property tax levy  
Note receivable  
Restricted cash  
Total assets  
General Fund Airport Fund  
1,030,692$ 305,333  
1,250  
1,477,741  
714,886  
2,574,906  
8,806  
23,695 2,517  
1,490,996  
153,586  
3,140,067  
10,607,819$ 316,656$  
Economic  
Development  
Fund  
824,765  
43,392  
24,880  
171,174  
471,628  
991,949  
2,527,788$  
Other  
Governmental  
Funds  
563,191  
310,745  
3,847  
877,783$  
Total  
Governmental  
Funds  
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2,723,981  
1,250  
1,831,878  
24,880  
714,886  
2,749,927  
480,434  
26,212  
- 
1,490,996  
1,145,535  
3,140,067  
14,330,046$  
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
Claims payable 310,862$ 6,991  
Intergovernmental payables 446,644  
Deferred revenue 2,205,882  
Due to other funds 13,468 1,078,847  
Total liabilities 2,976,856 1,085,838  
1,908  
991,949  
993,857  
5,000  
173,422  
178,422  
324,761  
446,644  
3,197,831  
1,265,737  
5,234,973  
Fund Balances:  
Reserved for inventory  
Reserved for debt service  
Reserved with purpose restrictions  
Unreserved  
3,140,067  
4,490,896 (769,182)  
471,628  
1,062,303  
242,717  
456,644  
471,628  
242,717  
3,140,067  
5,240,661  
Total Fund Balance 7,630,963 (769,182) 1,533,931 699,361 9,095,073  
Total liabilities and fund balances 10,607,819$ 316,656 2,527,788 877,783 
14,330,046  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT C-1  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET  
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
Total governmental fund balances (Exhibit C) $ 9,095,073  
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
are  
different because of the following:  
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial  
resources. Therefore, they are not recorded in the governmental funds  
balance sheet.  
Capital assets  
Less: accumulated depreciation  
$ 46,131,148  
(23,423,885) 22,707,263  
Other long term assets are not current financial resources. Therefore, they 
are not  
recorded in the governmental funds balance sheet.  
Bond issue costs  
Less: accumulated amortization  
193,710  
(44,574) 149,136  
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Note receivable for sale of capital asset used in governmental activities 
that is not  
a current financial resource and, therefore, not recorded in the governmental  
funds balance sheet.  
991,949  
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period 
expenditures  
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:  
Fines receivable  
Less: allowance for uncollectible  
4,044,653  
(3,329,767) 714,886  
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore,  
are not reported in the funds:  
Accrued interest payable  
Governmental bonds payable  
Governmental notes payable  
Compensated absences  
(235,584)  
(6,647,020)  
(3,910,568)  
(383,175)  
Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 22,481,960  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
 
15  
 
EXHIBIT D  
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES  
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
Economic Other Total  
General Airport Development Governmental Governmental  
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds  
REVENUES  
Taxes 1,693,255$ 1,693,255  
Licenses and permits 604,375 604,375  
Sale tax 4,791,387 408,484 5,199,871  
Intergovernmental 1,157,054 852,507 7,422 689,759 2,706,742  
Charges for services 567,888 126,290 63,695 757,873  
Fines and forfeitures 401,555 401,555  
Interest earned 369,370 369,370  
Rent 88,439 27,864 18,501 134,804  
Miscellaneous 163,345 6,559 48,790 218,694  
Road and bridge tax 141,281 43,168 184,449  
Donations 6,891 6,891  
Total revenues 9,984,840 985,356 492,560 815,123 12,277,879  
EXPENDITURES  
General government 2,237,242 2,237,242  
Public safety 5,450,581 9,295 5,459,876  
Public works 1,107,532 18 1,107,550  
Culture and recreation 241,751 241,751  
Economic development 206,457 82,700 289,157  
- 
Debt service - 
Principle payments 243,050 121,985 130,000 495,035  
Interest and fiscal charges 144,735 39,174 131,543 315,452  
Capital outlay 1,549,949 968,265 11,080 447,668 2,976,962  
Allocations 38,200 38,200  
Total expenditures 11,013,040 1,335,881 355,323 456,981 13,161,225  
Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over expenditures (1,028,200) (350,525) 137,237 358,142 (883,336)  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  
Proceeds from issuance of debt 500,000 216,474 716,474  
Sale of assets - 
Transfers in 833,333 150,000 983,333  
Transfers out (242,000) (242,000)  
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,091,333 366,474 --1,457,807  
Net changes in fund balances 63,133 15,959 137,237 358,142 574,471  
Fund balances - beginning 7,739,928 (785,141) 1,685,674 341,219 8,981,680  
Prior Period Adjustments (172,098) (288,980) (461,078)  
Fund balances-beginning, restated 7,567,830 (785,141) 1,396,694 341,219 
8,520,602  
Fund balances - ending $ 7,630,963 (769,182) 1,533,931 699,361 9,095,073  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT D-1  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit D) $ 574,471  
 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are  
different because of the following:  
 
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the  
 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated  
 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:  
 
Capital outlay $ 2,858,401  
Depreciation expense (1,917,311)  
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 941,090  
 
Proceeds from new borrowings is revenue in the governmental funds, but the  
proceeds increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 
(716,474)  
 
 
Repayment of debt principle is and expenditure in the governmental funds, but 
the  
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 
492,904  
 
 
The proceeds from the sale of assets is recorded as revenue in the 
governmental funds.  
However, only the gain on the sale is reported in the statement of 
activities:  
 
 
Sale of assets (598,298)  
 
Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit B) $ 693,693  
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT E  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Enterprise Funds  
 
Utility Cemetery  
Fund Fund Total  
ASSETS  
Current assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 966,400 115,592 1,081,992  
Accounts receivable, net 1,105,427 24,016 1,129,443  
Intergovernmental receivables  
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Inventory 398,653 188,640 587,293  
Due from other funds 2,151 9,621 11,772  
Prepaid expenses 15,091 65 15,156  
Petty cash 250 250  
Total current assets 2,487,972 337,934 2,825,906  
Capital assets  
Land and construction in progress 169,023 3,576 172,599  
Other capital assets, net 3,592,240 7,409 3,599,649  
Unamortized debt issuance costs 42,010 42,010  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 366,280 265,722 632,002  
Total noncurrent assets 4,169,553 276,707 4,446,260  
Total assets 6,657,525 614,641 7,272,166  
LIABILITIES  
Current liabilities  
Accounts payable 428,970 1,860 430,830  
Accrued Interest 59,731 59,731  
Due to other funds 1,493,839 215 1,494,054  
Bond payable- current 26,720 26,720  
Notes payable-current 39,013 39,013  
Capital leases payable-current 19,521 19,521  
Payable from restricted assets:  
Customer deposits 433,440 433,440  
Total current liabilities 2,501,234 2,075 2,503,309  
Noncurrent liabilities  
Deferred revenue 38,473 38,473  
Bond payable 391,982 391,982  
Notes payable 1,432,027 1,432,027  
Capital leases payable - 
Compensated absences 53,699 8,377 62,076  
Note payable PRCUA 17,616 17,616  
Sewer payments due to PRCUA 472,835 -472,835  
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,368,159 46,850 2,415,009  
Total liabilities 4,869,393 48,925 4,918,318  
NET ASSETS  
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,420,718 10,685 2,431,403  
Unrestricted (632,586) 555,028 (77,558)  
Total net assets 1,788,132 565,713 2,353,845  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT F  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
Enterprise Funds  
Utility Cemetery  
Fund Fund Total  
OPERATING REVENUES  
Charges for services 5,241,351$ 5,241,351  
Sale of lots 72,253 72,253  
Miscellaneous 116,123 648 116,771  
Total operating revenues 5,357,474 72,901 5,430,375  
OPERATING EXPENSES  
Personnel services 1,187,805 104,172 1,291,977  
Supplies 239,819 8,627 248,446  
 
Other services and charges 1,404,756 6,387 1,411,143  
Gas purchased 118,655 1,312 119,967  
Depreciation and amortization 407,968 407,968  
Bad debts 239,242 239,242  
Utilities and communication 1,426,049 1,293 1,427,342  
Compensated absences 8,344 8,344  
Total operating expenses 5,032,638 121,791 5,154,429  
GAIN (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 324,836 (48,890) 275,946  
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)  
Grants 985,149 985,149  
Loss on sale of sewer assets (3,682,817) (3,682,817)  
Interest earned 46,599 8,366 54,965  
Interest expense (74,846) (74,846)  
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (2,725,915) 8,366 (2,717,549)  
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS  
AND TRANSFERS (2,401,079) (40,524) (2,441,603)  
Transfers in 133,000 92,000 225,000  
Transfers out (833,333) (833,333)  
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CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (3,101,412) 51,476 (3,049,936)  
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 4,670,421 514,237 5,184,658  
Prior period adjustments 219,123 219,123  
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING, AS RESTATED 4,889,544 514,237 5,403,781  
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING 1,788,132$ 565,713 2,353,845  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT G  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Receipts from customers  
Payments for goods and services  
Payments to employees  
Other receipts  
Net cash used in operating activities  
$  
Utility  
Fund  
4,517,970  
(3,200,969)  
(1,187,805)  
116,123  
245,319  
Cemetery  
Fund  
72,253  
(16,326)  
(97,464)  
648  
(40,889)  
Enterprise Funds  
Total  
4,590,223  
(3,217,295)  
(1,285,269)  
116,771  
204,430  
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL  
FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Transfers out  
Transfers in  
Federal grants  
Net cash provided by (used in)  
noncapital financing activities  
(833,333)  
133,000  
985,149  
284,816  
92,000  
92,000  
(833,333)  
225,000  
985,149  
376,816  
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND  
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Purchases and construction of capital assets  
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt  
Principle paid on capital debt  
Interest paid on capital debt  
Net cash provided by capital and related  
(42,122)  
(967,450)  
(495,847)  
(47,787)  
(1,553,206) - 
(42,122)  
(967,450)  
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(495,847)  
(47,787)  
(1,553,206)  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Customer deposits  
Interest received  
Net cash provided by investing activities  
(386,265)  
46,599  
(339,666)  
8,366  
8,366  
(386,265)  
54,965  
(331,300)  
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents:  
Beginning of the year  
(1,362,737)  
2,695,417  
59,477  
321,837  
(1,303,260)  
3,017,254  
End of the year $ 1,332,680 381,314 1,713,994  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT G  
(Continued)  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Enterprise Funds  
Utility Cemetery  
Fund Fund Total  
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)  
TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Gain (Loss) from operations $ 324,836 (48,890) 275,946  
Adjustments to reconcile gain (loss) from operations  
to net cash provided  
Depreciation and amortization expense 118,655 1,312 119,967  
(Increase) decrease in current assets  
Accounts receivable (723,381) (723,381)  
Inventory (375,765) (375,765)  
Due from other funds 16,129 16,129  
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities - 
Accounts payable 117,241 117,241  
Accrued interest 26,059 26,059  
Due to other funds 266,202 266,202  
Other liabilities 475,343 6,689 482,032  
Net cash used in operating activities $ 245,319 (40,889) 204,430  
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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EXHIBIT H  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS  
FIDUCIARY FUND  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Tax Collector  
 
ASSETS  
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Cash and cash equivalents $  
Fund  
462,283  
462,283  
LIABILITIES  
Intergovernmental payables  
$  
462,283  
462,283  
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
I. Introduction  
The City of Picayune, Mississippi, (City) incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Mississippi and situated  
in Pearl River County, operates under the council -manager form of government 
and provides the following  
services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety (Police and Fire), 
Public Works, Health and Welfare,  
Culture and Recreation, and General Administrative Services.  
 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting 
principles and practices are  
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the notes are 
organized to provide  
explanations, including required disclosures, of the City’s financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended  
September 30, 2008.  
 
II. Financial Reporting Entity  
The City’s basic financial stateme nts include the accounts of all City 
operations. The criteria for including as  
component units of the City consist of oversight responsibility, special 
financing relationships and scope of  
public services. Oversight responsibility is determined by the extent of 
financial interdependency, control  
over the selection of the governing authority and management, ability to 
significantly influence operations,  
and accountability for fiscal matters. Based on these criteria, the City has 
no component units.  
 
Related Organizations  
 
The Picayune School District has been excluded from the reporting entity, 
because it is an “other stand-alone  
government.” The school district is a related organization of, but not a 
component unit of the City of  
Picayune. The governing authorities of the City do select a majority of the 
school district’s board, but do not  
have ongoing financial accountability for the school district.  
 
Joint Ventures and Jointly Governed Organizations  
 
Additionally during its evaluation of potential component units, management 
identified one joint venture,  
Partners for Pearl River County, and one jointly governed organization, 
Municipal Gas Authority of  
Mississippi.  
 
A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a 
contractual arrangement and that is  
owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and 
specific activity subject to joint  
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control, in which the participants retain (a) an ongoing financial interest 
or (b) an ongoing financial  
responsibility. Generally, the purpose of a joint venture is to pool 
resources and share the costs, risk, and  
rewards of providing goods or services to the venture participants directly, 
or for the benefit of the general  
public or specific service recipients.  
 
A jointly governed organization is similar in nature to a joint venture in 
that they provide goods and services  
to the citizenry of two or more governments. However, they do not meet the 
definit ion of a joint venture  
because there is no ongoing significant financial interest or responsibility 
by the participating governments.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)  
 
III. Government -Wide and Fund Financial Statements  
Government -Wide Financial Statements  
 
The government -wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets 
and the statement of changes in  
net assets) report financial information on all of the nonfiduciary 
activities of the City. Governmental  
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately  
from business -type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support.  
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree of which the direct 
expenses of a given function or  
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a  
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to 
customers or applica nts who  
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment;  
 
(2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating 
activities including restricted  
investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the 
acquisition, construction, or  
rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers. Taxes and 
other items not properly included  
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  
Fund Financial Statements  
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds  
even though the latter are excluded from the government -wide financial 
statements. Major individual  
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund  
financial statements.  
 
IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation  
(A) Basis of Accounting  
The City complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) as  
applicable to governmental entities, and as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board  
(GASB). GASB is accepted standard -setting body for governmental accounting 
and financial reporting  
principles. Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) pronouncements and  
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 
1989, unless those  
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which, 
GASB prevails.  
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The government -wide financial statements report using the economic resources 
measurements focus and the  
accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or 
elimination of internal activity  
(between or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial 
statements also report using the same  
focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in 
these statements. Revenues are  
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liabilit y is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of the  
related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for 
which they are levied. Grants and  
similar items are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and  
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and  
available. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within the current period or soon  
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, 
the City considers revenues to be  
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally  
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures,  
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when  
payment is due. Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: 
property taxes, licenses,  
intergovernmental revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues 
are recognized when cash is  
received by the City.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)  
 
IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (Continued)  
Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements include 
revenues and expenses related to  
the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues 
for proprietary funds are  
charges to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are 
the costs of providing goods or  
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital 
assets. Other revenues and expenses  
are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.  
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, if is 
the City’s policy to use restricted  
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. See Note 2 for 
information describing restricted assets.  
 
(B) Fund Types and Major Funds  
Governmental Funds  
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds:  
 
General Fund – The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It 
accounts for all  
financial resources if the general government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another  
fund.  
 
Airport Fund – This capital project fund accounts for the financial resources 
used for the  
acquisition, construction, and maintenance of the City operated airport.  
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Economic Development Fund – This special revenue fund accounts for the 
proceeds from the  
Tourism Sales Tax, and the sales of land in the industrial park that are used 
for economic  
development.  
 
Proprietary Funds  
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:  
 
Utility Fund – The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner  
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing 
body is that costs  
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing water, sewer, and gas 
services to the general public  
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user 
charges.  
 
Cemetery Fund -The cemetery fund accounts for the activities and operations 
of the City operated  
cemetery.  
 
Other Fund Types  
 
The City also reports the following fund types:  
 
Special Revenue Fund – The special revenue funds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific  
revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major 
capital projects) that  
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  
 
Debt Service Funds – The debt service funds are used to account for the 
servicing of long-term  
general obligation debt of the governmental funds.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOCUNTING POLICIES (Continued)  
 
IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (Continued)  
Other Fund Types (Continued)  
 
Fiduciary Fund – The tax collector fund is used to account for assets held by 
the City in a trustee  
capacity or as an agent for other governmental units.  
 
(C) Use of Estimates  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires  
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and  
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts  
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.  
 
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity  
(A) Cash and Investments  
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered to be cash on 
hand and amounts held in  
demand deposits. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, short-term 
investments held in proprietary  
funds with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the 
City, if any, are considered to be  
cash equivalents.  
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State statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) direct obligations of the 
United States government, the  
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States government if 
pledged, (2) certificates of  
deposit when insured or secured by acceptable collateral and (3) obligations 
of the State of Mississippi, or  
any county, municipality or school district of the State of Mississippi which 
have been approved by a  
reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of the chancery 
court. Investments are recorded  
at costs, which approximated fair value.  
 
(B) Receivables and Payables  
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of  
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or 
“advances to/from other funds.” All  
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other 
funds.” Any residual balances  
outstanding between the governmental activities and business type activities 
are reported in the government wide  
financial statements as “internal balances.”  
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are 
offset by a fund balance reserve  
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not 
available for appropriation and are not  
expendable available financial resources.  
 
All trade, property tax, and fine receivables are shown net of an allowance 
for uncollectibles. An allowance  
has been provided in the general fund and the utility fund for estimated 
uncollectible ad valorem taxes  
receivable and utility charges. In the general fund, the allowance amount is 
estimated based on collections  
histor y. The allowance in the utility fund is estimated using accounts 
receivable past due 90 days or more.  
As of September 30, 2008 the allowance for uncollectible utility and general 
fund receivables is $3,433,333 .  
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NOTES 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)  
 
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)  
(C) Prepaid Items  
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond 
September 30, 2008, are recorded as  
prepaid items.  
 
(D) Inventories  
Inventories consists of natural gas stored with the City’s supplier, cemetery 
plots, aviation fuel at the  
Picayune Municipal Airport, and parcels of land at the City’s industrial 
park. Inventories are stated at cost  
utilizing the average cost valuation method for natural gas and aviation fuel 
and at historical cost for  
cemetery plots and land.  
 
(E) Restricted Assets  
Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the 
nature or normal understanding of  
the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed 
by creditors, contributors,  
grantors, or laws. Restricted assets in the debt service fund are restricted 
for the payment of debt service.  
Restricted assets in the special revenue funds are restricted for economic 
development, recreation and for  
certain purposes as stated in the grant agreements. Restricted assets in the 
enterprise funds represent utility  
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customer deposits subject to refund and amounts restricted for improvements. 
When both restricted and non  
restricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted 
assets first.  
 
(F) Capital Assets  
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrast ructure 
assets (e.g., roads, bridges,  
sidewalks, and similar items), net of depreciation are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business type  
activities columns in the government -wide financial statements. The City 
generally capitalizes assets  
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful 
life in excess of two years. Such  
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital  
assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.  
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend  
assets lives are not capitalized.  
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as project 
s are constructed. Interest  
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business -type 
activities is included as part of the  
capitalized value of the assets constructed. No interest cost was capitalized 
during the current fiscal year.  
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight 
-line method over the following  
 
estimated useful lives:  
Buildings 50 years  
Building improvements 20 years  
Public domain infrastructure 50 years  
Utility system infrastructure 10-50 years  
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years  
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS (Continued)  
 
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)  
(G) Long-Term Obligations  
In the government -wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in 
the fund financial statements,  
long-term debt and other long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the  
applicable governmental activities, business -type activities, or proprietary 
fund type statements of net assets.  
Bond issuance costs and bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and 
amortized over the terms of the  
respective bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond  
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of  
the related debt.  
 
The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and 
premiums as other financing  
sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.  
 
(H) Compensated Absences  
The City’s policy allows employees to accumulate all unused vacation and sick 
leave. Full-time employees  
are granted vacation from 12 to 24 days per year depending on the employee’s 
length of service. Retiring  
and terminating employees are paid for unused vacation up to a maximum of 240 
hours. There is no liability  
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for unpaid accumul ated sick leave since sick pay is not paid upon 
termination of employment. All vacation  
pay is accrued when incurred in the government -wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements. In the fund  
financial statements, a liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have  
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  
 
The compensated absences liability was computed using the specific 
identification method whereby the  
actual number of vacation hours multiplied by the employee’s hourly rate at 
September 30, 2008. The  
resulting liability is then increased to include social security and 
retirement contributions that the City is  
required to pay upon liquidation of the liability.  
 
(I) Fund Equity  
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservation of 
fund balance for amounts that are  
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties 
for use for a specific purpose. The  
economic development fund reports reservations of fund balance for amounts 
resulting from tourism taxes  
exclusively restricted for economic development activities. Designations of 
fund balance represent tentative  
management plans that are subject to change.  
 
(J) Net Assets  
Net assets represen t the difference between assets and liabilities. Net 
assets invested in capital assets, net of  
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by outstanding balances of  
any borrowing used for the acquisition, constructi on, or improvement of 
those assets. Net assets are reported  
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through 
constitutional provisions or  
enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, laws, or regulations of  
other governments.  
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NOTE 2: CASH AND OTHER DEPOSITS  
 
(A) Cash  
The carrying value of the City’s deposits with financial institutions was 
$8,040, 084 and the bank balance was  
$8,492,392 at September 30, 2008, including $867, 638 in certificates of 
deposits.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk: State law allows the City to invest in interest 
bearing time certificates of deposits for  
periods of fourteen days to one year with depositories and in obligations of 
the U.S. Treasury, state of  
Mississippi, or of any county, municipality or school district of the state. 
Further, the City may invest in  
certain purchase agreements.  
 
The collateral for public entities deposit s’ in financial institutions is 
held in the name of the State Treasurer  
of Mississippi under a program established by Section 27-105-5 Miss. Code 
Ann. (1972). Under this  
program, the entity’s funds are protected through a collateral pool 
administered by the state treasurer.  
Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge 
securities as collateral against those  
deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities 
pledged by that institution would be  
liquidated by the state treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered 
by the FDIC.  
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Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy that 
limits investment maturities as a  
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk: The City places no limit on the amount the City 
may invest in any one issuer.  
 
The carrying amount of certificates of deposits is a reasonable estimate of 
their fair value.  
 
(B) Investments  
Mississippi municipalities may invest surplus funds in certificates of 
deposit with qualified depositories and  
in bonds and direct obligations of the United States of America; or the State 
of Mississippi; or any county,  
municipality or school district of the State of Mississippi which have been 
approved by a reputable bond  
attorney or have been validated by the decree of the chancery clerk.  
 
At September 30, 2008, the City did not hold any certificates of deposit with 
maturity dates longer than three  
months.  
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NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES  
 
Receivables at September 30, 2008 consist of the following :  
 
Governmental Business-type Total  
Activities Activities Government-wide  
Ad Valorem tax $ 2,009,433 2,009,433  
 
Sales tax  
Tourism tax  
Fines receivable, gross  
Accounts receivable, gross  
Intergovernmental  
Total receivables, gross  
818,137  
43,392  
4,044,653  
960,418  
7,876,033  
1,233,009  
1,233,009  
818,137  
43,392  
4,044,653  
1,233,009  
960,418  
9,109,042  
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (3,329,767) (103,566) (3,433,333)  
Total receivables, net 4,546,266$ 1,129,443 5,675,709  
 
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for 
revenues that are not  
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. 
Governmental funds also defer  
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned. Deferred  
revenue at September 30, 2008 consists primarily of unearned grant revenue.  
 
(A) Property Taxes  
The City levies a tax on real and personal property based on the assessed 
value of property as compiled by  
the Pearl River County and Hancock County tax assesso rs from the information 
extracted from the County  
assessment tax rolls. The taxes on real property attach as an enforceable 
lien on the property as of January 1.  
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Taxes on real and personal property are levied by the City Council at the 
first regular meeting in September.  
The City’s tax assessment roll is then approved by the City Council after a 
series of public hearings to  
receive the citizens’ objections. Such taxes are billed and collected by the 
City.  
 
In accordance with Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended for code section 27-
39-321, the Board may levy  
taxes in any amount for general revenue purposes and general improvements. 
However, taxes collected for  
the current year are limited to an increase of not more than 10% over 
receipts for any one of the preceding  
three years. For purposes of the computation, taxes collected in the current 
year resulting from the property  
added to the tax assessment roll are excluded from the computation.  
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NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES (Continued)  
 
(B) Notes Receivable  
Brockway Building  
 
On May 3, 2005 the City entered into an agreement with Farmer Fresh Produce 
International, LLC for the  
sale of the City’s Brockway Building. The sale price of the building was 
$1,100,000 at 2% interest per  
annum for a period of thirty years. Monthly payments of $4,066 are due on the 
first day of each month.  
 
The sale is financed by the City. The agreement includes a special provision 
that the City incur $35,000 to  
repair and modernize the Brockway Building’s administrative offices. The City 
and the buyer agree that the  
special provision will be met by the buyer not paying the first 8 payments 
and reducing the ninth payment.  
The net note receivabl e of $991,949 is included in “notes receivable” in the 
Statement of Net Assets.  
 
NOTE 4: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS  
 
Due from other governments at September 30, 2008 consists of the following:  
 
Total  
Governmental Business-type Government- 
Activities Activities wide  
Grants $ 311,012 -311,012  
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS  
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2008 is as follows:  
Governmental Activities  
Capital assets, not being depreciated  
Land  
Construction in progress  
Total Capital assets,  
not being depreciated  
Balance 9/30/07 Additions  
2,249,707$ 34,000  
1,464,555 84,561  
3,714,262 118,561  
Deletions  
(133,000)  
(133,000)  
Adjustments  
(470,670)  
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(470,670)  
Balance 9/30/08  
2,150,707  
1,078,446  
3,229,153  
Capital assets, being depreciated  
Buildings and improvements  
Machinery and equipment  
Improvements other than buildings (I)  
Mobile Equipment  
Infrastructure (s)  
Total capital assets,  
being depreciated  
2,791,885  
802,033  
5,017,521  
2,886,892  
28,651,012  
40,149,343  
214,355  
151,592  
1,894,918  
68,683  
528,853  
2,858,401  
(109,629)  
(466,790)  
(576,419)  
251,420  
219,250  
470,670  
3,257,660  
843,996  
6,912,439  
2,488,785  
29,399,115  
42,901,995  
Less accumulated depreciation for:  
Buildings and improvements  
Machinery and equipment  
Improvements other than buildings  
Mobile Equipment  
Infrastructure (s)  
Total accumulated depreciation  
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  
1,035,040  
451,328  
859,944  
1,930,671  
17,806,010  
22,082,993  
18,066,350  
87,272  
79,409  
298,721  
198,951  
1,252,958  
1,917,311  
941,090  
(109,629)  
(466,790)  
(576,419)  
470,670  
1,122,312  
421,108  
1,158,665  
1,662,832  
19,058,968  
23,423,885  
19,478,110  
Total capital assets, net 21,780,612 1,059,651 (133,000) -22,707,263  
Business-Type Activities  
Capital assets, not being depreciated:  
Land  
Construction in progress  
Total Capital assets,  
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not being depreciated  
172,599  
- 
172,599 --- 
172,599  
- 
172,599  
Capital assets, being depreciated  
Buildings and improvements  
Machinery and equipment  
Mobile Equipment  
Infrastructure  
Total capital assets,  
being depreciated  
 
47,730  
849,951  
400,781  
13,121,853  
14,420,315  
26,522  
15,600  
42,122  
(82,113)  
(53,806)  
(7,862,391)  
(7,998,310) - 
47,730  
794,360  
362,575  
5,259,462  
6,464,127  
Less accumulated depreciation for:  
Buildings and improvements  
Machinery and equipment  
Mobile Equipment  
Infrastructure  
Total accumulated depreciation  
Total capital assets,  
being depreciated, net  
Total business-type activities  
capital assets, net $  
29,010  
481,602  
382,186  
7,457,252  
8,350,050  
6,070,265  
6,242,864  
1,559  
42,722  
9,583  
66,301  
120,165  
(78,043)  
(78,043)  
(48,034)  
(38,206)  
(5,519,497)  
(5,605,737)  
(2,392,573)  
(2,392,573)  
30,569  
476,290  
353,563  
2,004,056  
2,864,478  
3,599,649  
3,772,248  
35  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)  
 
Adjustments:  
Balances were adjusted to reflect the completion of constructing projects 
total 470,670 and to adjust the balances to  
 
physical.  
 
 
Construction in progress at September 30, 2008 primarily consists of airport 
infrastructure.  
 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as 
follows:  
 
 
Governmental Activities  
 
General government 91,130  
Public safety 163,553  
Public works 1,211,458  
Culture and recreation 25,650  
Economic Development 425,520  
Total Governmental activities  
depreciation expense $ 1,917,311  
Business-Type Activities  
Utility 118,853  
Cemetery 1,312  
Total business-type activities  
depreciation expense $ 120,165  
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NOTE 6: LONG – TERM DEBT  
Changes in long – term debt during the year ended September 30, 2008 are as 
follows:  
Governmental Activities  
Bonds  
Notes  
Compensated absences  
Total  
October 1,  
2007 Additions  
6,474,822$ 500,000  
3,861,329 216,474  
331,551 51,866  
10,667,702$ 768,340  
Reductions  
327,800  
167,235  
495,035  
September 30,  
2008  
6,647,022  
3,910,568  
383,417  
10,941,007  
Due within  
One Year  
378,280  
177,554  
555,834  
Business-Type Activities  
Bonds  
Notes  
Capital leases  
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Compensated absences  
Total  
445,902$ 27,200  
1,921,099 450,059  
38,108 18,587  
110,517 48,439  
2,515,626$ -544,285  
418,702  
1,471,040  
19,521  
62,078  
1,971,341  
26,720  
35,194  
19,521  
81,435  
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)  
(A) Bonds Payable  
At September 30, 2008, the City's outstanding bonds payable are described as 
follows:  
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2004, dated March 1,  
2004, $1,500,000 amount, variable interest currently at 2.875% that  
increases over the life of the bonds to 3.8%, payable in annual  
installments beginning at $75,000 on March 1, 2005, and increasing  
annually thereafter up to $130,000 until maturity on March 1, 2019. $ 
1,185,000  
Special Obligation Bonds, 2004, dated April 15, 2004, $3,500,000  
amount, variable interest currently at 4.0% that increases over the life  
of the bonds to 4.625%, payable in annual installments beginning at  
$110,000 on July 1, 2005, and increasing annually thereafter up to  
$260,000 until maturity on July 1, 2024. 3,025,000  
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2005, dated August  
15, 2005, $1,500,000 amount, variable interest currently at 3.3% that  
increases over the life of the bonds to 3.6%, payable in annual  
installments beginning at $70,000 on July 1, 2006, and increasing  
annually thereafter up to $135,000 until maturity on July 1, 2020. 857,022  
General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, 2006, dated July 7,  
2006, $1,200,000 amount, fixed interest rate at 4.30%, payable in  
annual installments beginning at $60,000 on May 1, 2007, and  
increasing thereafter up to $105,000 until maturity on May 1, 2021. 1,080,000  
General Obligation Bond Series, 2008 dated March 19, 2008.  
Principal amount of $500,000  
payable at a fixed rate of 2.9% for 10 years.  
$  
500,000  
6,647,022  
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)  
(A) Bonds Payable  
Principal and interest maturities will be as follows:  
Year Ending Total  
September 30, Principal Interest Requirements  
Governmental Activities 2009 378,280$ 268,330 646,610  
2010 386,610 248,553 635,163  
2011 409,940 238,561 648,501  
2012 428,270 223,762 652,032  
2013 451,000 211,902 662,902  
2014-2018 2,369,600 817,976 3,187,576  
2019-2023 1,630,953 224,733 1,855,686  
2024-2028 592,369 19,966 612,335  
Total 6,647,022$ 2,253,783 8,900,805  
Year Ending Total  
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September 30, Principal Interest Requirements  
Business-Type Activities 2009 26,720$ 14,918 41,638  
2010 28,390 14,010 42,400  
2011 30,060 13,044 43,104  
2012 31,730 12,022 43,752  
2013 34,000 11,140 45,140  
2014-2018 190,400 37,018 227,418  
2019-2023 77,402 4,896 82,298  
Total 418,702$ 107,048 525,750  
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)  
(B) Notes Payable  
At September 30 2008, the City's outstanding notes payable are described as 
follows:  
MDA Loan No. 0524  
bearing interest at 3%  
maturing February 1, 2028  
Original  
Amount  
272,539  
Governmental  
Activities  
267,281  
Business-Type  
Activities  
Mississippi Development Authority (MDA)  
for Drainage Project, bearing interest at 3%,  
maturing September 1, 2014. 332,072 150,935  
MDA for drainage project, bearing interest at 4.65%  
maturing January 1, 2015. 73,000 39,169  
MDA for Airport Improvement, bearing interest at 3%,  
maturing September 30, 2010. 479,550 107,571  
MDA for Airport Improvement, bearing interest at 3%  
maturing April 1, 2011. 227,548 75,815  
MDA for Airport Infrastructure Project,  
dated May 16, 2001, bearing interest at 3%, maturing  
June 1, 2022. 269,850 199,156  
MDA for Airport Infrastructure Project,  
bearing interest at 3%, maturing  
June 1, 2022. 66,317 49,676  
Mississippi State Department of Health  
(MSDH) for Drinking Water Systems Improvements  
bearing interest at 3.5%  
maturing July 1, 2023. 253,005 209,888  
Trustmark Bank for Centraplex building  
bearing interest at 4.93%, maturing June 22, 2010. 72,168 30,965  
Mississippi Dev Bank for Katrina Relief, interest of 3 % maturing 250,000 
144,442 100,000  
FEMA Special Community Disaster Loan, interest at 2.67% maturing 2,224,091 
2,224,091  
FEMA Special Community Disaster Loan, interest at 2.93% maturing 1,011,729 
1,011,729  
BancorpSouth interest at 4.32% maturing September 3, 2014 174,546 149,423  
MDA for airport infrastructure at 3% maturing July 31, 2027 650,000 621,467  
Total 6,356,415 3,910,568 1,471,040  
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(B) Notes Payable (Continued)  
Principal and interest maturities will be as follows:  
Year Ending Total  
September 30, Principal Interest Requirements  
Governmental Activities 2009 177,554$ 49,934 227,488  
2010 182,653 44,608 227,261  
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2011 2,339,816 335,284 2,675,100  
2012 92,652 35,064 127,716  
2013 95,570 32,470 128,040  
2014-2018 384,560 123,154 507,714  
2019-2023 368,775 66,893 435,668  
2024-2028 268,988 16,326 285,314  
Total 3,910,568$ 703,733 4,614,301  
Year Ending Total  
September 30, Principal Interest Requirements  
Business-Type Activities 2009 35,194$ 17,973 53,167  
2010 40,319 12,849 53,168  
2011 1,051,780 161,343 1,213,123  
2012 41,618 11,504 53,122  
2013 43,783 9,384 53,167  
2014-2018 105,091 26,608 131,699  
2019-2023 122,392 14,194 136,586  
2024-2028 30,863 2,412 33,275  
Total 1,471,040$ 256,267 1,727,307  
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)  
(C) Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs  
The following details unamortized debt issuance costs included in other 
assets at September 30, 2008.  
Governmental Activities  
Debt  
Issuance  
Costs  
Accumulated  
Amortization  
Net  
Book Value  
Public improvement bonds issued for general purposes in  
the original amount of $1,500,000, dated March 1, 2004,  
amortized over the life of the bonds of 180 months. $ 39,206 (11,980) 27,226  
expansion in the original amount of $3,500,000, dated  
April 15, 2004, amortized over the life of the bonds of  
243 months.  
Special obligation bonds issued for Friendship Park  
115,000 (25,319) 89,681  
2005, amortized over the life of the bonds of 178.5 months.  
Public improvement bonds issued for general purposes in  
the original amount of $1,500,000, of which $1,005,522 is  
allocated for governmental activities, dated August 15,  
18,522 (3,891) 14,631  
General Obligation building bonds issued for purchase of  
Arizona Chemical Building in the original amount of  
$1,200,000, dated July 7, 2006, amortized over the life of the  
bond of 166 months. 20,982 (3,384) 17,598  
Total $ 193,710 (44,574) 149,136  
Business-Type Activities  
Note payable to MSDH for Drinking Water Systems  
Improvements Revolving Loan in the amount of  
$253,005, dated May 14, 2002, to be amortized over the  
life of the loan of 237 months when the project is  
complete. 15,524 (3,547) 11,977  
Public improvement bonds issued for general purposes in  
the original amount of $1,500,000 of which $494,478 is  
allocated for business-type activities, dated August 15,  
2005, amortized over the life of the bonds of 178.5 months. 6,100 (1,281) 
4,819  
Total $ 21,624 (4,828) 16,796  
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(D) Capital Leases  
At September 30 2008, the City's outstanding capital leases are described as 
follows:  
 
Original Governmental Business-Type  
 
Amount Activities Activities  
Capital lease payable to bank, $132,234 dated February 6, 2001,  
secured by a boring machine and trailer, bearing and interest  
rate of 5.02%, payable in annual installments of $20,501  
through February 15, 2009. $ 132,234 19,521  
 
Total $ 132,234 -19,521  
 
The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these 
minimum lease payments as of  
 
September 30, 200 were as follows:  
September 30,  
2009  
Governmental  
Activities  
- 
Business-Type  
Activities  
20,501$  
Total minimum lease payments -20,501  
Less amount representing interest (980)  
Present value of minimum payments -$ 19,521  
 
As of September 30, 2008, the cost of the vehicles and equipment under 
capital leases was $132,234 in the business -type  
funds accumulated amortization for those assets was $99,176 in the business 
type funds. Amortization expense in the  
business -type activities was $13,224 included in utility expenses.  
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NOTE 6: LONG – TERM DEBT (Continued)  
 
(E) Legal Debt Margin  
The City’s legal debt limit for general bonds is $11,177,605 . At September 
30, 2008, the City’s legal debt margin,  
after reduction for outstanding general obligation notes of $4,702,783 was 
$4,567,322 .  
 
NOTE 7: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS  
 
(A) Interfund Receivables and Payables  
Generally, outstanding balances between fund reported as “due to/from other 
funds” include outstanding charges by  
one fund to another for services or goods, subsidy commitments outstanding at 
year-end, and other miscellaneous  
receivables/payables between funds. Activities between funds that are 
representative of lending/borrowing  
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are described as “due 
to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent  
portion of interfund loans).  
 
Due To Due From  
Governmental Activities  
Due To Due From  
Business-Type Activities  
General County Fund  
Economic Development Fund  
Katrina Grant Fund  
$ 13,468 2,574,906  
1,908 171,174  
3,847  
Friendship Park  
Airport Fund  
Intermodel Transportation  
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Utility Fund  
Cemetery  
Police Drug Fund  
Total $  
171,174  
1,078,847  
48  
2,200  
1,267,645 2,749,927  
1,493,839  
215  
1,494,054  
2,151  
9,621  
11,772  
 
(B) Interfund Transfers  
Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the 
purposes of subsidizing operating  
functions, funding capital projects and asset acquisitions, or maintaining 
debt service on a routine basis. Resources  
are accumulated in a fund to support and simplify the administration of 
various programs.  
 
The government -wide statement of activities eliminates transfers as reported 
within the segregated governmental  
and business -type activities columns. Only transfers between two columns 
appear in this statement. The following  
transfers were made between funds during the year ended September 30, 2008.  
 
Interfund Transfers Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities  
Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out  
General County Fund 833,333$ 242,000  
Economic Development Fund  
Airport Fund 150,000  
Utility Fund 833,333  
Cemetery 92,000  
Total 983,333$ 242,000 92,000 833,333  
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NOTE 8: DEFICIT FUND NET ASSETS  
 
At September 30, 2008, there is a deficit fund balance in the Airport Fund of 
$769,182. Grant revenues received  
after year-end will provide for the deficiency.  
 
NOTE 9: JOINT VENTURE AND JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION  
 
Joint Venture  
 
Partners for Pearl River County (PFPRC) is a joint venture between the City, 
the City of Poplarville, and Pearl  
River County. PFPRC was organized to promote and develop the industrial, 
commercial, and economic welfare  
of Pearl River County. PFPRC is funded primarily by contributions received 
from its members. In fiscal year  
2008, the City provided $85,000 in support which was reported in economic 
development “expenses” on the  
Statement of Activities and on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in fund Balances –  
Governmental Funds. Each year the City determines the amount of support to be 
provided to PFPRC based on  
availability of City resources. Consequently, any potential future financial 
benefit or burden to the City  
resulting from activities performed by PRPRC is not determinable at this 
time.  
 
Jointly Governed Organization  
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The City is a member of the Municipal Gas Authority of Mississippi (MGAM, 
created as a local distribution company  
by Mississippi State Code Section 77-6-1 for the purpose of assisting 
municipal gas systems in the acquisition,  
transportation and management of adequate, dependable and economic natural 
gas supplies. Membership of MGAM at  
September 30, 2008, consisted 17 municipalities or natural gas districts, all 
located in the State of Mississippi. Each  
voting member appoints one commissioner to MGAM’s Board of Commissioners who 
has oversight responsibility of  
the operation of MGAM. The primary source of revenue for MGAM is from gas 
supply contracts with each of its  
members which require the members to take their entire gas supply or a fixed 
portion from MGAM and require  
MGAM to provide that supply. MGAM is considered to be a jointly governed 
organization since no member can  
unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of MGAM and its 
members do not have an ongoing financial  
responsibility. The City entered into a gas supply contract for purchases of 
gas effective April 1, 2001, for a term of  
ten years at a price based on a spot price index minus a discount of $.05 per 
MGAM. For the fiscal year ended  
September 30, 2008, payments to MGAM for gas purchases amounted to $1,426,049 
. The payments are included in  
utility “expenses” on the Statement of Activities and are included in “gas 
purchased” on the Statement of Revenues,  
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets – Proprietary Funds.  
 
NOTE 10: RETIREMENT PLANS  
 
(A) Public Employees’ Retirement System  
The City participates in a retirement system administered by the Public 
Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi  
(PERS). The system is a defined benefit plan and includes a multi-employer, 
cost-sharing pension plan as described  
below:  
 
Plan Description and Provisions  
 
Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in PERS, a 
multi-employer, cost-sharing, defined  
benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living  
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit 
provisions are established by State law  
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues 
a publicly available financial  
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That information may be  
obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 
Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS  
39201-1005, or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.  
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NOTE 10: RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)  
 
Description of Funding Policy  
 
PERS members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary 
and the City, is required to contribute  
at an actuarially determined rate. The rate of annual covered payroll was 
11.85%. The contribution requirements of  
PERS members are established and may be amended only by the State of 
Mississippi Legislature . The City’s  
contributions to PERS for the years ending September 30, 2008, 2007, and 
2006, were $704,647, $692,019, and  
$538,352 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.  
 
(B) Deferred Compensation Plan  
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The City, through PERS, offers its employees a voluntary deferred 
compensation plan created in accordance with  
 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, 
permits them to defer a  
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not 
available to employees until termination,  
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The assets of the plan are held 
in trust for the exclusive benefit of  
participants and their beneficiaries. The requirements of Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457(g) prescribes that the City  
does not own the amounts deferred by employees, including the related income 
on those amounts. Additionally, the  
City does not have fiduciary accountability for the plan. Accordingly, the 
assets and the liability for compensation  
deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan assets, are not 
included in the City’s financial statements.  
 
NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCI ES  
 
(A) Litigation  
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in  
the opinion of the City’s legal counsel the resolution of these matters will 
not have a material effect on the financial  
condition of the City.  
 
(B) Grants and Awards  
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by the grantor agencies,  
principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including 
amounts already collected, might  
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City does not believe any 
contingent liabilities are material.  
 
(C) Operating Lease  
In February 2003, the City entered into a twenty year lease agreement with 
the Picayune City School District for  
exclusive rights to operate and maintain Snyder Park. The lease agreement 
requires the City to pay the School District  
$5,425 annually on March 3rd for ten years. In 2013, the School District will 
have the property reappraised and will  
adjust the annual rent accordingly. The City may cancel the lease at any time 
provided that they give the School  
District sixty days notice prior to the lease anniversary date.  
 
(D) State Auditor’s Investigation  
In June 2005, the City requested that the State Auditor’s Office investigate 
certain allegations of wrong doing in the  
Court Department. An investigation is currently underway. On August 1, 2008, 
Debi W. Cox, Special Agent for the  
Mississippi Office of the State Auditor, took possession of Picayune General 
Fund Receipt Warrant Books covering  
the time period of 10/25/2002 through 5/31/2005. No preliminary report on the 
findings has been made to date and,  
therefore, the potential affect of the investigation on financial statements 
is unknown.  
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NOTE 12: RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
(A) Self-Insurance – Workers Compensation Fund  
The City is one of approximately 255 members in the Mississippi Municipal 
Workers’ Compensation Group, Inc. This  
non-profit corporation is a self-insurance worker’s compensation fund 
organized under the nonprofit  
laws of the State of Mississippi. The group is self-insured under statutory 
workers compensation protection.  
Members are jointly and severally liable for the obligations of the group. 
The possibility of additional liability exists,  
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but that amount, if any, cannot be determined.  
 
 
(B) Self-Insurance – Liability Fund  
The City is one of approximately 245 members in the Mississippi Municipal 
Liability Plan. The Plan is a private nonprofit  
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi. The Plan 
provides liability and tort claims  
insurance for its members according to limits established by the Mississippi 
Tort Claims Act. The Plan is totally self- 
insured with claims and expenses paid out of the premiums and the members are 
jointly and severally liable for any  
claims and expenditures beyond the premium base. The possibility of 
additional liability exists, but that amount, if  
any, cannot be determined.  
 
NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 
Litigation  
 
None  
 
Contracts  
 
None  
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NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)  
 
Funding  
 
Grants  
NONE  
 
 
NOTE 14: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS  
A Prior period adjustment was made in the financial statements to reflect the 
following:  
Governmental Activities:  
1) Correction of prior year accruals $ (258,361 )  
Total Governmental activities $ (258,361 )  
Business -type Activities:  
1) Correction of prior year accounts receivable $ 219,123  
Total Business -type activities $ 219,123  
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GENERAL FUND  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
VARIANCE  
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE  
REVENUES BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)  
Taxes 2,055,880$ 1,682,880 1,693,255 10,375  
Licenses and permits 656,000 794,000 758,334 (35,666)  
Intergovernmental 7,967,534 7,647,135 6,089,722 (1,557,413)  
Charges for services 110,100 14,000 454,225 440,225  
Interest 50,000 50,000 369,370 319,370  
Fines and forfeitures 380,300 380,800 361,259 (19,541)  
Miscellaneous 39,494 106,600 258,676 152,076  
Total Revenues 11,259,308 10,675,415 9,984,841 (690,574)  
EXPENDITURES  
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General Government  
Personnel 1,390,300 1,480,633 1,411,020 69,613  
Supplies 40,750 161,400 37,215 124,185  
Other Services and charges 413,075 529,952 785,078 (255,126)  
Capital outlay 6,000 193,425 3,928 189,497  
Totals 1,850,125 2,365,410 2,237,241 128,169  
Public Safety  
Personnel 4,453,000 4,381,000 4,696,434 (315,434)  
Supplies 270,691 270,551 286,761 (16,210)  
Other Services and charges 343,350 354,763 314,221 40,542  
Capital outlay 2,040,965 2,040,965 153,164 1,887,801  
Totals 7,108,006 7,047,279 5,450,580 1,596,699  
Public Works  
Personnel 761,300 861,593 965,950 (104,357)  
Supplies 107,650 148,434 279,117 (130,683)  
Other Services and charges 75,600 75,600 209,016 (133,416)  
Capital outlay 115,288 132,288 97,294 34,994  
Totals 1,059,838 1,217,915 1,551,377 (333,462)  
Culture and Recreation  
Personnel 114,500 114,500 112,946 1,554  
Supplies 17,200 19,800 27,648 (7,848)  
Other Services and charges 11,900 15,705 101,157 (85,452)  
Capital outlay 1,318,381 1,131,681 1,102,199 29,482  
Totals 1,461,981 1,281,686 1,343,950 (62,264)  
 
50  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)  
GENERAL FUND CONTINUED  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)  
GENERAL FUND CONTINUED  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
Support to other organizations  
Debt service  
ORIGINAL  
BUDGET  
44,200  
836,553  
FINAL  
BUDGET  
43,225  
442,948  
ACTUAL  
38,200  
387,785  
VARIANCE  
POSITIVE  
(NEGATIVE)  
5,025  
55,163  
Total expenditures 12,360,703 12,398,463 11,009,133 1,389,330  
Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over expenditures (1,101,395) (1,723,048) (1,024,292) 698,756  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  
Sale of assets  
Debt proceeds  
Insurance proceeds  
Transfers in  
Transfers out  
Total other financing sources (uses)  
950,000  
(684,948)  
265,052  
24,894  
950,000  
(242,000)  
732,894  
500,000  
833,333  
(242,000)  
1,091,333  
(24,894)  
500,000  
(116,667)  
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- 
358,439  
Net change in fund balances (836,343) (990,154) 67,041 $ 1,057,195  
Fund balances - beginning, budget (3,685,876) (2,050,000) 6,735,378  
Fund balances - ending, budget $ (4,522,219) (3,040,154) 6,802,419  
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:  
Change in accrued revenue 828,544  
Fund Balance-ending GAAP Basis $ 7,630,963  
See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.  
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
REVENUES  
Intergovernmental  
Rent  
Interest  
Miscellaneous  
Total Revenues  
ORIGINAL  
BUDGET  
350,000$  
48,790  
7,400  
406,190  
FINAL  
BUDGET  
350,000  
48,790  
7,400  
406,190  
ACTUAL  
500,632  
32,654  
50,498  
69,388  
653,172  
VARIANCE  
POSITIVE  
(NEGATIVE)  
150,632  
(16,136)  
43,098  
69,388  
246,982  
EXPENDITURES  
Support to other organizations  
Other services and charges  
Capital outlay  
Debt service  
Total Expenditures  
100,000  
261,543  
361,543  
100,000  
142,644  
261,543  
504,187  
81,212  
142,644  
65,771  
289,627  
- 
18,788  
- 
195,772  
214,560  
Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over expenditures 44,647 (97,997) 363,545 461,542  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  
Transfers in  
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Transfers out  
Capital contributions  
Total other financing sources (uses) ---- 
Net change in fund balances 44,647 (97,997) 363,545 461,542  
Fund balances - beginning, budget 1,143,938 1,742,195 1,734,689  
Fund balances - ending, budget 1,188,585$ 1,644,198 2,098,234  
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:  
Change in accrued revenue  
Prior period adjustment  
(275,323)  
(288,980)  
Fund Balance-ending GAAP Basis $ 1,533,931  
See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.  
 
52  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)  
AIRPORT FUND  
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REVENUES  
Intergovernmental  
Rent  
Interest  
Fines and forfeitures  
Miscellaneous  
Total Revenues  
ORIGINAL  
BUDGET  
289,950$  
113,768  
125  
403,843  
FINAL  
BUDGET  
289,950  
113,768  
125  
403,843  
ACTUAL  
609,716  
 
167,174  
5,785  
782,675  
VARIANCE  
POSITIVE  
(NEGATIVE)  
319,766  
53,406  
5,660  
378,832  
EXPENDITURES  
Economic Development  
Personnel  
Supplies  
Other Contract Services  
Capital Outlay  
Debt Service  
Total Expenditures  
182,200  
5,425  
48,395  
285,950  
132,062  
654,032  
182,200  
5,425  
48,395  
285,950  
132,062  
654,032  
133,819  
5,107  
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40,427  
963,924  
132,062  
1,275,339  
48,381  
318  
7,968  
(677,974)  
- 
(621,307)  
Excess (deficiency) of revenues  
over expenditures (250,189) (250,189) (492,664) (242,475)  
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  
Debt proceeds  
Transfers in  
Transfers out  
Total other financing sources (uses)  
150,000  
150,000  
150,000  
150,000  
216,474  
137,500  
353,974  
216,474  
(12,500)  
203,974  
Net change in fund balances (100,189) (100,189) (138,690) $ (38,501)  
Fund balances - beginning, budget 643,770 643,770 (740,423)  
Fund balances - ending, budget 543,581$ 543,581 (879,113)  
Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:  
Change in accrued expenses  
Change in accrued revenue  
(93,380)  
202,681  
Fund Balance-ending GAAP Basis $ (769,812)  
See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.  
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GENERAL FUND AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND  
FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE A: BUDGETARY DATA  
 
The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data are as 
follows:  
 
1.  
Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a propose 
operating budget for the  
fiscal year beginning October 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means  
of financing them.  
2.  
Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  
3.  
No later than September 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of 
a resolution.  
4.  
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device 
during the year for all  
Governmental and Proprietary Fund types.  
5.  
Budgets are adopted on a cash basis as required by State statute. All 
budgeted amounts presented in  
the accompanying financial statements are as originally adopted or as amended 
by the City Council.  
Accordingly, actual figures have also been presented on a cash basis.  
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. 
Transfers of appropriations between  
departments require approval of the City Council. The legal level of 
budgetary controls is the department  
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level.  
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SCHEDULE A  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS, FOR CITY OFFICIALS  
September 30, 2008  
 
 
Covered Surety Company Coverage Amount  
Mayor RLI Surety $ 100,000  
Council Member RLI Surety 100,000  
City Manager RLI Surety 50,000  
City Clerk RLI Surety 50,000  
Deputy City Clerk Fidelity and Deposit Company 50,000  
City Inspector RLI Surety 5,000  
Police Chief RLI Surety 5,000  
Police Chief RLI Surety 50,000  
Police Department- Blanket Bond RLI Surety 25,000  
All Other Employees - Blanket Bond Fidelity and Deposit Company 20,000  
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
 
 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  
 
February 1, 2010  
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and City Manager  
City of Picayune, Mississippi  
Picayune, Mississippi  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business -type activities,  
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Picayune, Mississippi, as of and for  
the year ended September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City of 
Picayune, Mississippi’s basic  
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 1, 
2010. We conducted our audit in  
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable  
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United  
States.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered City’s internal control 
over financial reporting as a basis for  
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not  
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for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiven ess of the City’s 
internal control over financial  
reporting.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the 
limited purpose described in the  
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting  
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as 
discussed below, we identified certain  
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to 
be significant deficiencies.  
 
A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in  
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A  
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control 
deficiencies, that adversely affects the City  
of Picayune, Mississippi’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, 
or report financial data reliably in  
accordance with generally accepted accounting principle s such that there is 
more than a remote likelihood that a  
misstatement of City of Picayune, Mississippi financial statements that is 
more than inconsequential will not be  
prevented or detected by the City of Picayune, Mississippi’s internal 
control. We consider the deficiencies  
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be 
significant deficiencies in internal  
control over financial reporting.  
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and City Manager  
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City of Picayune, Mississippi  
Picayune, Mississippi  
February 1, 2010  
 
A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of 
significant deficiencies, that results in more than  
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected by the  
City of Picayune, Mississippi’s internal control.  
 
Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for 
the limited purpose described in the first  
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in the internal control that might be  
significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all 
significant deficiencies that are also  
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we consider 08-1, 08-2, 08-5 
and 08-6 to be material weaknesses  
of the significant deficiencies described above.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Picayune, 
Mississippi’s financial statements  
are free of material misstate ment, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations,  
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the  
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providi ng an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions  
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests  
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government  
Auditing Standards.  
 
The City’s response to the findings in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and  
questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it.  
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the 
City Council, and federal awarding  
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these  
specified parties.  
 
 
WRIGHT CPA GROUP, PLLC  
Certified Public Accountants  
Hattiesburg, Mississippi  
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS  
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM  
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133  
 
 
February 1, 2010  
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and City Manager  
 
City of Picayune, Mississippi  
Picayune , Mississippi  
 
Compliance  
 
We have audited the compliance of City of Picayune, Mississippi with the 
types of compliance requirements  
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are  
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 
30, 2008. The City’s major federal  
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and  
questioned costs. Compliance with the requireme nts of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants applicable to each of  
its major federal programs is the responsibility of management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the  
City’s compliance based on our audit.  
 
We conducted our audit of complia nce in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United  
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards , issued  
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments,  
and Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require 
that we plan and perform the  
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements  
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit  
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing  
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a  
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on the City’s compliance with  
those requirements.  
 
In our opinion, the City of Picayune complied, in all material respects, with 
the requirements referred to above that  
are applicable to each major federal program for the year ended September 30, 
2008.  
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Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and City Manager  
City of Picayune, Mississippi  
Picayune, Mississippi  
February 1, 2010  
 
Internal Control Over Compliance  
 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over  
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In  
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control 
over compliance with the  
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program in order to determine our  
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing  
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on  
the effectiveness of the county’s internal control over compliance.  
 
A control deficiency in a county’s internal control over compliance exists 
when the design or operation of a control  
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent  
or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A  
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control 
deficiencies, that adversely affects the  
county’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than 
a remote likelihood that  
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement is a federal program that 
is more than inconsequential will  
not be prevented or detected by the county’s internal control.  
 
A materia l weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of 
significant deficiencies, that results in more than  
a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will  
not be prevented or detected by the county’s internal control.  
 
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited 
purpose described in the first  
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in internal control that might be  
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in the internal control over  
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of managemen t, 
the City of Picayune , others within the  
entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by  
anyone other these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not  
limited.  
 
 
WRIGHT CPA GROUP, PLLC  
Certified Public Accountants  
Hattiesburg, Mississippi  
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SCHEDULE I  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES FOR FEDERAL AWARDS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title  
CFDA  
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Number  
Pass-through  
Grantor's Number  
Federal  
Expenditures  
U.S. Department of Agriculture  
Rural Development- Community Facilities 10.766 NA 34,143  
Environmental Protection Agency  
Special Appropriation Water Infrastructure Grant 66.606 NA 94,230  
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services  
Passed Through the Mississippi Department of Health:  
Mosquito Control Grants: 93.283 NA 22,924  
U.S. Department of Homeland Security  
Passed Through Mississippi Emergency  
Management Agency:  
Domestic Preparedness Equipment Grant  
Presidentially Declared Disaster Public Assistance  
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security  
97.067  
97.036  
511-S297 57,168  
1,520,367  
1,577,535  
*  
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development  
Passed through the Mississippi Department Authority:  
C.D.B.G. Economic Development Infrastructure  
C.D.B.G. Block Grant for Entitlement Communities  
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development  
14.251  
14.218  
7,422  
94,569  
101,991  
U.S. Department of Justice Passed Through the  
Mississippi Department of Public Safety:  
Bullet Proof Vest Grant  
Violence Against Women Formula/Grants  
Total Department of Justice  
16.607  
16.588  
3,465  
24,761  
28,226  
U.S. Department of Transportation Passed Through the  
Passed Through Mississippi Department of Transportation:  
Safe Communities Program Grant  
Inter-modal Transportation Grants  
Direct Programs:  
Airport Improvement Program  
Intermodal Transportation Grants  
Total U. S. Department of Transportation  
20.600  
20.205  
 
20.106  
20.500  
50,590  
447,755  
498,345  
272,854  
424,583  
1,195,782  
*  
*  
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS $ 3,054,831  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
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The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is included in 
the federal grant activity of the  
City of Picayune, Mississippi, (the City) and is presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. The  
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements 
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits  
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  
 
NOTE 2: NON-CASH AWARDS  
 
The City did not receive any non-cash awards during the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2008.  
 
NOTE 3: SPECIAL DISASTER LOAN  
 
The City received $2,244,091 in FEMA Special Community Disaster Loan Funds in 
August of 2006 and  
$1,011,729 in additional Disaster Loan Funds in November of 2006.  
 
.  
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SCHEDULE II  
 
CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Section 1: Summary of Auditors' Results  
 
Financial Statements:  
 
1 Type of auditor's report issued:  
Governmental Activities Unqualified  
General Fund Unqualified  
Airport fund Unqualified  
Economic Development Unqualified  
Aggregate Remaining Funds Unqualified  
 
2 Internal control over financial reporting:  
 
Ï Material weakness(es) identified? Yes  
Ï Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are  
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes  
 
3 Noncompliance material to financial  
statements noted? No  
 
Federal Awards  
 
4 Internal control over major programs:  
Ï Material weakness(es) identified? No  
Ï Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are No  
 
5 Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major Unqualified  
 
6 Any audit findings disclosed that are  
required to be reported in accordance with section 510 No  
 
7 The dollar Threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 300,000  
 
8 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No  
 
9 Prior year audit finding or question coast relative to federal  
awards which would require auditee to prepare a summary  
schedule of prior audit findings as discussed in Section _.315(b)  
of OMB Circular A-133 No  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
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SECTION II – Financial Statement Findings  
 
2008-1 Finding (Repeated from 2007 audit findings)  
 
Significant Deficiency – Material Weakness  
 
Bank reconciliations contained errors and outstanding items with no 
resolution, were not prepared in a timely  
manner and were not consistently reconciled to the general ledger.  
Criteria  
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that the bank reconciliations 
are prepared accurately and in a timely  
 
fashion.  
Effect  
Without proper internal controls over the cash reconciliation process, there 
exists a risk that fraud and material  
 
errors in the cash accounts may not be detected.  
Recommendation  
Procedures should be implemented that require timely reconciliations of cash 
accounts and appropriate review by  
 
management .  
 
2008-2 Finding (Repeated from 2007 audit findings)  
 
Significant Deficiency -Material Weakness  
 
The City uses general journal entries to post accounting activities that 
should be accounted for through the City’s  
normal accounting process. Additionally, an unusually large number of general 
journal entries are used to correct  
errors in posting. The large amounts of journal entries indicates a lack of 
understanding of the accounting  
principles or inadequate controls of the accounts payable, cash receipts and 
tax collection functions.  
 
Criteria  
 
Journal entries should be used to correct an unusual error or to record 
transaction s that cannot be recorded through  
normal processing cycles. Large numbers of journal entries indicate that 
there is a problem with understanding the  
day to day accounting system or the accounting software.  
 
Effect  
 
Excessive journal entries make transactions much harder to trace through the 
accounting system and increase the  
risk of fraud or material errors going undetected.  
 
Recommendation  
 
Accounting personnel should attend training classes on the use of the City’s 
accounting software and fund  
accounting. Additionally, journal entries should only be made by an 
appropriate level of management and  
approved by the City Manager or City Clerk.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
SECTION II – Financial Statement Findings (continued)  
 
 
2008-3 Finding (Repeated from 2007 audit findings)  
 
Significant Deficiency  
All interfund loans and transfers are not being reconciled monthly and 
approved by the council.  
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Criteria  
Interfund transactions should be reconciled monthly and approved by the 
council .  
Effect  
The failure to reconcile these transactions monthly could result in errors 
going undetected and increase the chance  
 
of fraud.  
Recommendation  
Assign the reconciliation of interfund transactions to the appropriate 
accounting personnel and have the  
 
reconciliations initialed by management.  
 
2008-4 Finding (Repeated from 2007 audit findings)  
 
Significant Deficiency  
Condition  
Property tax collections were not properly allocated to the appropriate 
revenue or liability accounts upon  
 
 
collections.  
Criteria  
Property tax collections for the City should be allocated to the City’s 
revenue accounts or the appropriate liability  
 
 
accounts if the funds are collected for another governmental entity.  
Effect  
The City could inaccurately distribute tax revenues due to other governmental 
entities which could result in  
 
 
litigation and ill will.  
Recommendation  
The City should contract with the Pearl River County Tax Collector for the 
collection of the City’s tax levy.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
SECTION II – Financial Statement Findings (continued)  
 
2008-5 Finding (Repeated from 2007 audit findings)  
 
Significant Deficiency -Material Weakness  
 
Criteria  
 
A critical aspect of effective financial management is the maintenance of 
accurate accounting records.  
Management does not have the personnel qualified or trained to prepare the 
financial statements of the City in  
accordance with generally accepted accounting principals. Due to this lack of 
training the auditor was relied upon  
to prepare the financial statements. Without adequate controls of the 
recording and reporting of financial  
transactions, the risk increases that inaccurate information may be reported 
and that there may be a loss or  
misappropriation of public funds.  
 
Effect  
 
Financial statements may be inaccurate and public funds may be 
misappropriated.  
 
Recommendation  
 
The City should seek training for accounting personnel or hire an outside 
accounting firm to prepare the financial  
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statements.  
 
2008-6 Finding  
 
Significant Deficiency -Material Weakness  
Condition  
The City did not record utility revenue in its accounting records from May 1 
through September 30. This was the  
 
result of a conversion from one software company to another.  
Effect  
Utility fund revenues and receivables were understated from May through 
September of 2008.  
Recommendation  
The City should put controls in place that include reconciling the utility’s 
billing, collections, and accounts  
 
receivable monthly.  
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CITY OF PICAYUNE, MISSISSIPPI  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
SECTION III -Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs  
 
The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs 
related to the federal awards.  
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City of Picayune  
815 North Beech Street  
Picayune, Mississippi  
 
 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008  
 
 
Finding 2007-1  
 
Condition: The City switched Utility department software and did not maintain 
adequate records to document aged  
accounts receivable as of September 30, 2007.  
 
Status: The City has hired an independent accounting firm to recreate those 
records in fiscal year end September 30,  
2009.  
 
Finding 2007-2  
 
Condition: Bank reconciliations contained errors and were not prepared in a 
timely fashion.  
 
Status: Corrected in fiscal year end September 30, 2009  
 
Finding 2007-3  
 
Condition: The City posted excessive numbers of transactions through general 
journal entries.  
 
Status: The City is continuing to train personnel and has contracted with an 
independent accounting firm to monitor  
the accounting process.  
 
Finding 2007-4  
 
Condition: The City has an outside contractor maintain fixed asset inventory 
listing. However, the City does not  
record this information on its accounting records.  
 
Status: See 2007-3 above.  
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Finding 2007-5  
 
Condition: Interfund transactions are not reconciled monthly.  
 
Status: An independent accounting firm has been retained to monitor this 
process.  
 
Finding 2007-6  
Condition: Property tax collections were not property allocated to the 
appropriate revenue and liability accounts.  
Status: Corrected by contracting tax collection to the county.  
 
Finding 2007-7  
 
Condition: Management did not have personnel qualified to issue or review the 
financial statements.  
 
Status: An independent accounting firm has been retained to aid in preparing 
or reviewing the financial statements for  
the year ended September 30, 2009.  
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN  
FEBRUARY 1, 2010  
 
.  
 
Finding 2008-1  
 
The City has hired an outside accounting firm to assist in this function .  
 
Finding 2008-2  
 
See 2008-1  
 
Finding 2008-3  
 
See 2008-1  
 
Finding 2008-4  
 
The City contracted with the county tax collector for the collection and 
payment of tax proceeds.  
 
Finding 2008-5  
 
See 2008-1  
 
Finding 2008-6  
 
The City has put controls in place that include reconciling the Utility’s 
billings, collections and  
receivables .  
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American Institute of Certified Public Accountants • Mississippi Society of 
Certified Public Accountants  
 
#10 Plaza Drive • P.O. Box 16433 • Hattiesburg, MS 39404-6433  
Phone 601.268.3135 • Fax 601.261.3922  
 
www.wrightcpagroup.com  
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE  
WITH MISSISSIPPI STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS  
 
 
February 1, 2010  
 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and City Manager  
City of Picayune, Mississippi  
Picayune, Mississippi  
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We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Picayune as of 
and for the year ended September 30,  
2008, and have issued our report thereon dated February 1, 2010. We have 
conducted our audit in accordance with  
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial  
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.  
 
As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the 
Office of the State Auditor, we have also  
performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and 
regulations. However, providing an opinion on  
compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express  
such an opinion.  
 
The results of those procedures and our audit of the basic financial 
statements disclosed the following material  
instances of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Our findings and 
recommendations are as follows:  
 
Budget  
 
The City exceeded budgeted expenditures for the following departments of the 
General Fund without  
 
properly amending the budget:  
Public Works  
Culture and Recreation  
 
 
 
The City also exceeded the budgeted expenditu res for the Airport Fund 
without properly amending the  
budget.  
 
We recommend that the City adhere to state budget law and amend budgets when 
required .  
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Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and City Manager  
City of Picayune, Mississippi  
February 1, 2010  
 
The instances of noncompliance of the prior year have been corrected by 
management unless it is specifically  
stated otherwise in the findings and recommendations noted above.  
 
The Office of the State Auditor or a public accounting firm will review, on a 
subsequent year’s audit engagement,  
the findings in this report to ensure that corrective action has been taken.  
 
This report is intended for the information of the City’s management and the 
Office of the State Auditor and is not  
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. However, this report is a matter  
of public record and its distribution is not limited.  
 
 
WRIGHT CPA GROUP, PLLC  
Certified Public Accountants  
Hattiesburg, Mississippi  
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 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 



 REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2010 

 

 

 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
APPOINT WRIGHT & ASSOCIATES, CPA TO PERFORM THE CITY OF PICAYUNE 

AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2008-2009 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, second by Council Member 
Gouguet to appoint Wib Wright of Wright and Associates, CPA to perform the City of 
Picayune Audit for the fiscal year 2008-2009, which must be completed by June 30, 
2010. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  Mayor Ed Pinero  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
AUTHORIZE MAYOR’S SIGNATURE ON CONTRACT WITH DUNGAN 

ENGINEERING 
 
 Motion was made by Council Watkins, seconded by Council Member Lane to 
authorize Mayor’s signature on contract with Dungan Engineering for services to be 
provided for roof project at Margaret Reed Crosby Memorial Library. 
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VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO AUTHORIZE GIRL SCOUT TROOP NO. 6423 TO ASSIST IN 

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDING AND NEW CONSTRUCTION OF 

CONCESSION STAND AT SNYDER PARK 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Bumpers, seconded by Council Member 
Watkins to authorize Girl Scout Troop No. 6423 to assist in demolition of existing 
building and new construction of concession stand at Snyder Park. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY AT EAST CANAL PARK 

FOR LAND OF EQUAL APPRAISAL VALUE AT INDUSTRIAL PARK  

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Lane to approve transferring of ownership of property at East Canal St Park for land of 
equal appraisal value at Industrial Park in wetlands and authorize City Attorney to 
prepare related paperwork for Mayor’s signature. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
HOLD PUBLIC HEARING AND DELARE PROPERTIES PUBLIC NUSIANCE 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Lane to hold a public hearing and declare the following properties Public Nuisances. 
 
 1. 410 N Curran Ave. 
 2. South Blanks parcel 617-614-004-02-012-00 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
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VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
APPROVE CITY-WIDE GREAT AMERICAN CLEAN-UP 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Watkins to approve request to conduct City-Wide Great American Clean-up on March 
13, 2010. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
AUTHORIZE MAYOR, CITY CLERK & CITY ATTORNEY TO SIGN AGREEMENT TO 

UPDATE STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID COMPACT 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Lane to approve request to authorize update to Statewide Mutual Aid Compact (SMAC) 
agreement and authorize Mayor, City Clerk and City Attorney to sign the same. 
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 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
APPROVE T-HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CITY OF 

PICAYUNE AND FRANK FORD/JONATHAN WHITFIELD  
 
 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Lane to approve T-Hangar Lease Agreement by and between City of Picayune and 
Frank Ford/Jonathan Whitfield. 
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 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
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 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 

ORDER TO ENTER CLOSED SESSION TO DETERMINE THE NEED FOR AN 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Watkins to enter closed session to determine the need for an executive session. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to return to regular session. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
ORDER TO RE-ENTER EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Watkins to enter executive session to discuss the following: 
 

 Personnel Matter 
 Possible litigation-2006 Property Tax Sale 
 Compromise of disputed claim 
  
 The following roll call was made: 

 
VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
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 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 

RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to return to regular session. 
 

 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO SETTLE  TAXES DUE TO TAX SALE PURCHASERS FOR 2006 AD 

VALOREM COUNTY TAXES DUE ON ARIZONA CHEMICAL PROPERTY 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Lane to authorize City Attorney to settle amount due to tax sale purchasers for 2006 ad 
valorem county taxes due on Arizona Chemical Property in exchange for a quitclaim 
deed. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
MOTION TO COMPROMISE A DISPUTED CLAIM 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Watkins, seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to adjust utility account # 06273 in the name of WRJW by allowing the 
minimum charges for December and January because of a water line that was broken 
when the new meter was installed in November. 
 
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA: Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None   
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 



 REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 16, 2010 

 

 

 

MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 

 Motion was made by Council Member Breland seconded by Council Member 
Bumpers to adjourn until Tuesday, March 2, 2010 at 5:00 pm. 
  
 The following roll call was made: 
 

VOTING YEA:  Mayor Ed Pinero, Council Members Watkins, Bumpers, Lane, 
Breland and Gouguet 
   

 VOTING NAY:  None  
 
 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:  None  
 
 ABSTAINING AND NOT VOTING:  None 
 
 The motion was declared carried. 
 
 
 
 
            

       Ed Pinero, Mayor   
 
  

ATTEST: 
 
     
Priscilla Daniel, City Clerk  


